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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF COLORADO
DENVER DIVISION

MICHAEL PEREZ, individually and on

behalf of others similarly situated,

Civil Case No.:
Plaintiff,

VS.

GERRARD EXCAVATING, INC.,

Defendant.

COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT WITH JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff Michael Perez, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, by
and through his attorneys, JTB Law Group LLC, hereby brings this Collective and Class
Action Complaint against Defendant Gerrard Excavating, Inc., alleges of his own knowledge
and conduct and upon information and belief as to all other matters, as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. Plaintiff brings this action for himself and all other similarly situated collective
members to recover unpaid overtime wages, liquidated damages, and reasonable attorneys’ fees
and costs as a result of Defendant’s willful violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”),
29 U.S.C. 8201 et seq. and attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. § 516, et seq.

2. Plaintiff also brings this action for himself and all other similarly situated Rule 23
class members to recover unpaid overtime wages, penalties, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs as a result of Defendant’s willful violation of the Colorado Wage Act, C.R.S. § 8-4-101, et
seg. (“CWA”) and Colorado Minimum Wage Order No. 34, 7 C.C.R. § 1103-1 (“CMWO”).

3. Defendant is “one of the largest infrastructure/site development contractors in the

northern region” of Colorado providing site development, excavation, road construction and
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pipeline services®.

4. Plaintiff and the putative FLSA collective and Rule 23 class members were
employed by Defendant as hourly-paid Heavy Equipment Operators to perform work at various
job sites.

5. Defendant required the Heavy Equipment Operators, on a daily basis, to perform
pre-shift work-related activities, including, but not limited to, checking and warming up the
machine and equipment, so it would be ready for use at the beginning of their shifts.

6. Defendant and its management, however, prevented the Heavy Equipment
Operators from reporting time they spent on such pre-shift work-related activities.

7. Defendant and its management had knowledge that such pre-shift work-related
activities were performed by the Heavy Equipment Operators per workday.

8. As a result of Defendant’s common unlawful policies, the Heavy Equipment
Operators were not properly compensated overtime at a rate of not less than one and one-half
(1.5) times their regular rate of pay for all hours they worked in excess of forty (40) per
workweek;, in violation of the FLSA, CWA and CMWO.

9. Specifically, the Heavy Equipment Operators were not paid anything for their
pre-shift time.

10. This pre-shift work without pay is commonly referred to as an off the clock
violation.

11. Plaintiff asserts the FLSA claims on behalf of a putative FLSA collective, defined
as:

All Heavy Equipment Operators employed by Defendant at any time from 3 years
prior to the filing of this Complaint through the date of judgment.

! See Defendant’s website: https://www.gerrardexcavating.com/ (last accessed June 4, 2018).
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12. Plaintiff seeks to send a Notice pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) to all hourly-paid
Heavy Equipment Operators of Defendant permitting them to assert FLSA claims in this
collective action by filing their individual consent forms.
13. Plaintiff asserts the CWA and CMWO claims on behalf of a putative class
pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23, defined as:
All Heavy Equipment Operators employed by Defendant in the State of Colorado
at any time from 3 years prior to the filing of this Complaint through the date of
judgment.
14. Defendant has willfully and intentionally committed widespread violations of the

above-described statutes and corresponding regulations, in the manner described herein.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

15.  This Court has subject-matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s FLSA claims pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because Plaintiff’s claims raise a federal question under 29 U.S.C. § 201, et
seq.

16.  The court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s state law claims pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. 81367 because those claims derive from a common nucleus of operative facts as
Plaintiff’s federal claims.

17.  The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because it is incorporated and
maintains a principal place of business in the State of Colorado.

18.  Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) and (3) because
Defendant employed Plaintiff in this district and because a substantial portion of the events that
give rise to the Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this district.

PARTIES

19. Defendant Gerrard Excavating, Inc. is a for-profit entity created and existing under
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and by virtue of the laws of the State of Colorado.

20.  According to the Colorado Secretary of State website, Defendant maintains a
principal office at 27154 County Road 13, Johnstown, CO 80534.

21. Plaintiff Michael Perez (“Perez”) is a resident of the County of Weld and State of
Colorado.

22. Perez was employed by Defendant as an hourly-paid Heavy Equipment Operator
from approximately February 2016 to April 2018.

23.  Throughout his employment with Defendant, Perez was assigned to work at
various residential and commercial job sites with periods of each job site lasted anywhere from
several weeks to several months.

24. Perez’s written consent to become an FLSA party plaintiff is attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

25. Defendant has operated and controlled an enterprise engaged in commerce as
defined under the FLSA.

26. Defendant has generated over $500,000.00 in revenue per year.

27. Defendant had two (2) or more employees handling, selling, or otherwise working
on goods or materials that have been moved in or produced for commerce.

28. Defendant was the “employer” of Plaintiff and the other Heavy Equipment
Operators within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(d) of the FLSA and C.R.S. § 8-4-101(6) of the
CWA.

29. Plaintiff and the other Heavy Equipment Operators were “employees” of

Defendant within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(1) and § 8-4-101(5) of the CWA.
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30. Defendant “suffered or permitted” Plaintiff and the other Heavy Equipment
Operators to work and thus “employed” them within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. §203(g) of the
FLSA.

31. Defendant, directly or indirectly, hired Plaintiff and the other Heavy Equipment
Operators and determined the rate and method of the payment of their wages.

32. Defendant controlled the work schedules, duties, protocols, applications,
assignments and conditions of employment of the Heavy Equipment Operators.

33.  The position of Heavy Equipment Operator has been classified as non-exempt.

34.  The Heavy Equipment Operators performed primary job duties that do not fall
within any exemptions from overtime under the FLSA, CWA and CMWO.

35.  Plaintiff regularly worked 5 days a week and on some occasions 6 days a week.

36.  Plaintiff’s final hourly rate was $19.00 before he was separated from the
company.

37. Plaintiff’s work schedule was 7 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. including an unpaid 30-minute
lunch break.

38. The Heavy Equipment Operators regularly worked more than forty (40) hours per
workweek.

39. Defendant required the Heavy Equipment Operators to arrive at job sites prior to
the beginning of their shifts and perform pre-shift work-related activities including, but not
limited to, checking and warming up the machine and equipment, so it would be ready for use at
the beginning of the shifts.

40. However, Defendant and its management prevented the Heavy Equipment

Operators from reporting time they spent on such pre-shift work-related activities.
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41. Defendant and its management had knowledge that such pre-shift work-related
activities were performed by the Heavy Equipment Operators.

42. Plaintiff regularly arrived at the job sites at around 6:30 a.m. to start perform the
required pre-shift work-related activities.

43. Plaintiff was not allowed to report time he spent working pre-shift activities
between 6:30 a.m. and 7 a.m.

44,  There were occasions where Plaintiff filled out or at least attempted to fill out his
true beginning time as before 7a.m. but his supervisor and/or foreman instructed him to fill out
he started at 7 a.m. instead.

45, Defendant failed to properly keep complete and accurate time records of the work
hours performed by Plaintiff and other similarly situated Heavy Equipment Operators each
workday, in violation of 29 CFR Part 516 and 7 CCR 1103-1.

46.  While Defendant paid Plaintiff some overtime for time spent working within his
shift, Defendant failed to pay Plaintiff overtime for time spent performing pre-shift work-related
activities.

47. As a result of Defendant’s common unlawful policies, the Heavy Equipment
Operators were not properly compensated overtime at a rate of not less than one and one-half
(1.5) times their regular rate of pay for all hours they worked in excess of forty (40) per
workweek;, in violation of the FLSA, CWA and CMWO.

48. For example, during the pay period of 4/15/18 to 4/21/18, Perez worked over
forty (40) hours including time he spent performing pre-shift work-related activities during but
the paystub shows he was paid only for 40 hours of work without overtime pay.

49, The Heavy Equipment Operators have been subjected to the common pay and
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time-recording policies and practices of Defendant as stated herein that violated the FLSA, CWA
and CMWO.

50.  Defendant’s wrongful acts and/or omissions/commissions, as alleged herein, were
not made in good faith, or in conformity with or in reliance on any written administrative
regulation, order, ruling, approval, or interpretation by the state and/or U.S. Department of Labor
and/or any state department of labor, or any administrative practice or enforcement practice or
enforcement policy of such departments.

51.  Defendant’s violations of the above-described federal and state wage and hour
statutes and regulations were willful, arbitrary, unreasonable and in bad faith.

COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS

52.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates all previous paragraphs herein.

53. Plaintiff brings this action pursuant to Section 216(b) of the FLSA, as an opt-in
representative action, for and on behalf of all hourly-paid Heavy Equipment Operators who have
been affected by Defendant’s common policies and practices which include failure to properly
pay for all hours worked — time spent performing pre-shift work-related activities — resulting in
deprivation of overtime, in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.
(“FLSA”) and attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. § 516, et seq.

54, Plaintiff brings this action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) of the FLSA on behalf
of:

All Heavy Equipment Operators employed by Defendant at any time from 3 years
prior to the filing of this Complaint through the date of judgment.

Plaintiff reserves the right to amend this definition as necessary.
55. Plaintiff brings this collective action against Defendant to recover unpaid

overtime wages, liquidated damages, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 29
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U.S.C. § 216(b).

56. The collective action further alleges a willful violation of the FLSA and seeks an
additional, third year of limitations.

57. Plaintiff seeks to send Notice to all hourly-paid Heavy Equipment Operators of
Defendant permitting them to assert FLSA claims in this collective action by filing their
individual consent forms, as provided by 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) and supporting case law.

58.  Certification of the collective action under the FLSA is appropriate because the
employees described herein are “similarly situated” to Plaintiff under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). The
class of employees on behalf of whom Plaintiff brings this collective action are similarly situated
because: (a) they had the same job position and performed the same or similar job duties as one
another on behalf of Defendant; (b) they were subject to the same or similar unlawful practices
and policies as stated herein; and (c) their claims are based upon the same factual and legal
theories.

59. The employment relationships between Defendant and every collective member
are the same and differ only by name, location, and rate of pay. The key issue — the amount of
uncompensated off-the-clock time owed to each Heavy Equipment Operator — does not vary
substantially among the collective members.

60. Plaintiff anticipates that there will be no difficulty in the management of this
litigation. This litigation presents claims under the FLSA, a type that have often been prosecuted
on a class wide basis, and the manner of identifying the collective and providing any monetary
relief to it can be effectuated from a review of Defendant’s records.

61. Plaintiff and the putative FLSA collective members demand a trial by jury.
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RULE 23 CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

62. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates all previous paragraphs herein.

63. Plaintiff also seeks to maintain this action pursuant to Fed. R. of Civ. P. 23, as
an opt-out class action, for an on behalf all hourly-paid Heavy Equipment Operator who have
been affected by Defendant’s common policies and practices which include failure to properly
pay for all hours worked — time spent performing pre-shift work-related activities — resulting in
deprivation of overtime, in violation of the Colorado Wage Act, C.R.S. § 8-4-101, et seq.
(“CWA”) and Colorado Minimum Wage Order No. 34, 7 C.C.R. § 1103-1 (“CMWO”).

64. Plaintiff brings this Rule 23 class action on behalf of:

All Heavy Equipment Operators employed by Defendant in the State of Colorado
at any time from 3 years prior to the filing of this Complaint through the date of
judgment.

Plaintiff reserves the right to amend this definition as necessary.

65. Plaintiff brings this Rule 23 class action against Defendant to recover unpaid
overtime wages, penalties, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Colorado Wage
Act, C.R.S. § 8-4-101, et seq. (“CWA”) and Colorado Minimum Wage Order No. 34, 7 C.C.R. §
1103-1 (“CMWO”).

66. The Rule 23 class action further alleges a willful violation of the CWA and
CMWO and seeks an additional, third year of limitations.

67. The members of the Rule 23 class are so numerous that joinder of all class
members in this case would be impractical. Plaintiffs reasonably estimates that there are at least
fifty (50) class members in the State of Colorado. The Rule 23 class members should be easy to

identify from Defendant’s computer systems and electronic payroll and personnel records.

68.  There is a well-defined community of interest among the Rule 23 class
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members and common questions of law and fact predominate in this action over any questions

affecting each individual class member. These common legal and factual questions, include,
but are not limited to, the following:

a. Whether the Rule 23 class members were properly compensated for all

work hours including time spent performing pre-shift work-related

activities;

b. Whether the Rule 23 class members worked more than forty (40) hours
in any single workweek; and

c. Whether the Rule 23 class members were properly compensated
overtime wages at a rate not less than one and one-half (1.5) times their
regular rate of pay for all hours they worked in excess of forty (40) per
workweek.

69.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of those of the Rule 23 class members in that
they and all other class members suffered damages as a direct and proximate result of
Defendant’s common and systemic payroll policies and practices. All of the class members
were subject to the same corporate practices of Defendant, as alleged herein, of failing to
pay overtime wages. Any lawsuit brought by an employee of Defendant would be identical
to a suit brought by any other employee for the same violations and separate litigation would
cause a risk of inconsistent results.

70. Plaintiff was employed by Defendant in the same capacity as all of the class
members. All class members were treated the same or similarly by management with respect
to pay or lack thereof. This treatment included, but was not limited to, failure to pay proper
overtime wages. Thus, there are common questions of law and fact which are applicable to
each and every one of the class members.

71. Plaintiff will fully and adequately protect the interests of the class members and

have retained counsel who are qualified and experienced in the prosecution of nationwide

10
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wage and hour class actions. Plaintiff and his counsel do not have interests that are contrary to,
or conflicting with, the interests of the class members.

72. Defendant’s corporate-wide policies and practices affected all class members
similarly, and Defendant benefited from the same type of unfair and/or wrongful acts as to each
class member. Plaintiff’s claim arises from the same legal theories as all other class members.
Therefore, this case will be more manageable and efficient as a Rule 23 class action. Plaintiff and
his counsel know of no unusual difficulties in this case.

73. Plaintiff and the Rule 23 class members demand a trial by jury.

COUNT I
(29 U.S.C. § 216(b) Individual Claim)

Violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.
FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES

74. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates all previous paragraphs herein.
75. 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) provides:
[N]Jo employer shall employ any of his employees who in any
workweek is engaged in commerce or in the production of goods
for commerce, or is employed in an enterprise engaged in
commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, for a
workweek longer than forty hours unless such employee receives
compensation for his employment in excess of the hours above
specified at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular
rate at which he is employed.
76. Plaintiff regularly worked more than forty (40) hours per workweek.
77. Defendant failed to properly compensate Plaintiff for all hours worked including
time spent performing pre -shift work-related activities as alleged herein.
78. Defendant failed to pay properly pay Plaintiff overtime wages at a rate not less

than one and one-half (1.5) times his regular rate of pay for all hours he worked in excess of forty

(40) per workweek.

11
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79. Defendant’s conduct and practices, described herein, were willful, intentional,
unreasonably, arbitrary, and in bad faith.

80. Because Defendant willfully violated the FLSA, a three (3) year statute of
limitations shall apply to such violation pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 255(a).

81.  As a result of Defendant’s uniform and common policies and practices described
above, Plaintiff was illegally deprived of overtime wages earned, in such amounts to be
determined at trial, and is entitled to recovery of such total unpaid amounts, liquidated damages,
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and other compensation pursuant to 29 U.S.C § 216(b).

COUNT 11
(29 U.S.C. § 216(b) Collective Action Claim)

Violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.
FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES

82. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates all previous paragraphs herein.
83. 29 U.S.C. §207(a)(1) provides:
[N]Jo employer shall employ any of his employees who in any
workweek is engaged in commerce or in the production of goods
for commerce, or is employed in an enterprise engaged in
commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, for a
workweek longer than forty hours unless such employee receives
compensation for his employment in excess of the hours above
specified at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular
rate at which he is employed.
84. Plaintiff and the FLSA collective members regularly worked more than forty (40)
hours per workweek.
85. Defendant failed to properly compensate Plaintiff and the FLSA collective
members for all hours worked including time spent performing pre-shift work-related activities

as alleged herein.

86. Defendant failed to properly pay Plaintiff and the FLSA collective members

12
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overtime wages at a rate not less than one and one-half (1.5) times their regular rate of pay for all
hours they worked in excess of forty (40) per workweek.

87. Defendant’s conduct and practices, described herein, were willful, intentional,
unreasonably, arbitrary, and in bad faith.

88. Because Defendant willfully violated the FLSA, a three (3) year statute of
limitations shall apply to such violation pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 255(a).

89.  As a result of Defendant’s uniform and common policies and practices described
above, Plaintiff and the FLSA collective members were illegally deprived of overtime wages
earned, in such amounts to be determined at trial, and are entitled to recovery of such total
unpaid amounts, liquidated damages, reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and other compensation
pursuant to 29 U.S.C § 216(b).

COUNT 111

(CWA, C.R.S. § 8-4-101, et seq. and CMWO, 7 C.C.R. § 1103-1, Individual Claims)
FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES

90. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates all previous paragraphs herein.

91. Plaintiff regularly worked more than forty (40) hours per workweek.

92. Defendant failed to properly compensate Plaintiff for all hours worked including
time spent performing pre-shift work-related activities as alleged herein.

93. Defendant failed to properly pay Plaintiff overtime wages at a rate of not less than
one and one-half (1.5) times his regular rate of pay for all hours he worked in excess of forty (40)
per workweek.

94, Defendant’s conduct and practices, described herein, were willful, intentional,
unreasonably, arbitrary, and in bad faith.

95. Because Defendant willfully violated the CWA and CMWO, a three (3) year

13
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statute of limitations shall apply to such violation pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-4-122.

96.  As a result of Defendant’s uniform and common policies and practices described
above, Plaintiff was illegally deprived of overtime wages earned, in such amounts to be
determined at trial, and is entitled to recovery of such total unpaid amounts, penalties, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs and other compensation pursuant to CWA and CWMO.

COUNT IV
(Fed R. Civ. P. 23 Class Action Claims)

Violations of CWA, C.R.S. § 8-4-101, et seq. and CMWO, 7 C.C.R. § 1103-1
FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES

97. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates all previous paragraphs herein.

98. Plaintiff and the Rule 23 class members regularly worked more than forty (40)
hours per workweek.

99. Defendant failed to properly compensate Plaintiff and the Rule 23 class members
for all hours worked including time spent performing pre-shift work-related activities as alleged
herein.

100. Defendant failed to properly pay Plaintiff and the Rule 23 class members
overtime wages at a rate of not less than one and one-half (1.5) times their regular rate of pay for
all hours they worked in excess of forty (40) per workweek.

101. Defendant’s conduct and practices, described herein, were willful, intentional,
unreasonably, arbitrary, and in bad faith.

102. Because Defendant willfully violated the CWA and CMWO, a three (3) year
statute of limitations shall apply to such violation pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-4-122.

103.  As a result of Defendant’s uniform and common policies and practices described
above, Plaintiff and the Rule 23 class members and were illegally deprived of overtime wages

earned, in such amounts to be determined at trial, and are entitled to recovery of such total

14
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unpaid amounts, penalties, reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and other compensation pursuant to

CWA and CWMO.

RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully request that this Court grant the following relief

against Defendant:

(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

A declaratory judgment that Defendant’s wage practices alleged herein violate the
overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq., and
attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. 8 516, et seq.;

A declaratory judgment that Defendant’s wage practices alleged herein violate the
Colorado Wage Act, C.R.S. 8 8-4-101, et seq. and Colorado Minimum Wage Order No.
34,7 C.C.R. §1103-1.

An Order for injunctive relief ordering Defendant to comply with the FLSA, CWA and
CMWO and end all of the illegal wage practices alleged herein;

Certifying this case as a collective action in accordance with 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) with
respect to the FLSA claims set forth herein;

Certifying this action as a class action pursuant to Fed R. Civ. P. 23 with respect to the
CWA and CMWO claims set forth herein;

Ordering Defendant to disclose in computer format, or in print if no computer readable
format is available, the names, addresses, e-mail addresses, telephone numbers, dates of
birth, job titles, dates of employment and locations of employment of all FLSA collective
and Rule 23 class members;

Authorizing Plaintiff’s counsel to send notice(s) of this action to all FLSA collective and

Rule 23 class members, including the publishing of notice in a manner that is reasonably

15
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(H)

)

Q)

(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)

(0)

calculated to apprise the FLSA collective members of their rights by law to join and
participate in this lawsuit;

Designating Lead Plaintiff as the representatives of the FLSA collective and Rule 23
class in this action;

Designating the undersigned counsel as counsel for the FLSA collective and Rule 23
Class in this action;

Judgment for damages for all unpaid overtime compensation and liquidated damages to
which Plaintiff and the FLSA collective members are lawfully entitled under the FLSA,
29 U.S.C. 8§ 201, et seq., and attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. § 516, et seq.;

Judgment for damages for all unpaid overtime compensation and penalties to which
Plaintiff and the Rule 23 class members are lawfully entitled under the Colorado Wage
Act, C.R.S. § 8-4-101, et seq. and Colorado Minimum Wage Order No. 34, 7 C.C.R. 8§
1103-1.

An incentive award for the Lead Plaintiff for serving as representative of the FLSA
collective and Rule 23 class in this action;

Awarding reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by Plaintiff in this action as
provided by the FLSA, CWA and CMWO; and

Judgment for any and all civil penalties to which Plaintiff and the FLSA collective and
Rule 23 class members may be entitled; and

Such other and further relief as to this Court may deem necessary, just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all other FLSA collective and Rule 23 class

members, by and through his attorneys, hereby demand a trial by jury pursuant to Rule 38 of the

16
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Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and the court rules and statutes made and provided with respect

to the above entitled claims.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

Dated: By: s/ Jason T. Brown

Jason T. Brown

Nicholas R. Conlon

Ching-Yuan (“Tony”) Teng (pending admission application)
JTB LAW GROUP, LLC

155 2nd St., Suite 4

Jersey City, NJ 07302

T: (877) 561-0000

F: (855) 582-5297
jtb@jtblawgroup.com
nicholasconlon@jtblawgroup.com
tonyteng@jtblawgroup.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

17
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EXHIBIT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF COLORADO
DENVER DIVISION

MICHAEL PEREZ, individually and on

behalf of others similarly situated,

Civil Case No.:
Plaintiff,

VS.

GERRARD EXCAVATING, INC.,

Defendant.

CONSENT TO SUE

I hereby consent to be a Plaintiff in the Fair Labor Standards Act case captioned above. I
hereby consent to the bringing of any claims I may have under the Fair Labor Standards Act (for
unpaid minimum wages, overtime, liquidated damages, attorney’s fees, costs and other relief)
and applicable state wage and hour law against the Defendant(s). I further consent to bringing
these claims on a collective and/or class basis with other current/former employees of
Defendant(s), to be represented by JTB Law Group LLC, and to be bound by any settlement of
this action or adjudication by the Court.

Signed: W’%?% Dated: 06/07/2018

Name: Michael Perez

adaress: [

Street

Greeley, CO, 80631

City, State, Zip Code

Doc ID: c7657a07a6e3beef01beb5eb9cd4400c007d5834
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JS 44 Reverse (Rev. 06/17)  District of Colorado Form
INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet
The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

L (a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the
official, giving both name and title.

(b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at
the time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(¢) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment,
noting in this section “(see attachment)”.

11. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.C.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an “X” in
one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.

United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.

United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box.

Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the
Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and

box 1 or 2 should be marked.

Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship
of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV.  Nature of Suit. Place an “X” in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code that
is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin. Place an “X” in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441. When the
petition for removal is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.

Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation — Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to the changes

in statute.

VI.  Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service.

VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the dollar amount (in thousands of dollars) being demanded or indicate other demand such as a preliminary injunction. Jury

Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS-44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers
and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
District of Colorado

MICHAEL PEREZ, individually and on behalf of
others similarly situated,

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No.

GERRARD EXCAVATING, INC.,

N N N N N N N N N N N N

Defendant(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) GERRARD EXCAVATING, INC.
27154 County Road 13, Johnstown, CO 80534

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Jason T. Brown

JTB Law Group, LLC
155 2nd Street, Suite 4
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(A | served the summons on (name of individual) , Who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ;or
3 | returned the summons unexecuted because por
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

i Seers |




ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Emr. Heavy Equipment Operator Sues Gerrard Excavating Over Allegedly Unpaid Pre-Shift Work



https://www.classaction.org/news/fmr-heavy-equipment-operator-sues-gerrard-excavating-over-allegedly-unpaid-pre-shift-work



